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Message from the Chairman of the Board

CONSOLIDATED COMMISSION ON UTILITIES

JOSEPH "JOEY"” DUENAS
Chairman, CCU

When our customers think of the Guam Waterworks Authority, they most often think of the water they need
to cook with or do their laundry or for other household needs. The Guam Waterworks Authority is not just
water wells, pump stations or sewage treatment plants, etc. The heart of the Guam Waterworks Authority is
the men and women (the employees) who with their knowledge and skills are dedicated to serving our Island
community with the essential service of water. While there are many good Government of Guam employees
in Agencies who provide important services such as Public Safety, Public Health, etc., the service the
employees of the Guam Waterworks Authority provides to our community is essential to life on our Island.
Without water, life on our Island would be difficult and primitive.

The management and employees of GWA should be proud of the work they do for their families, friends and
neighbors. On behalf of myself and my fellow Commissioners on the Consolidated Commission on Utilities,
we commend all the employees of GWA for a job you continue to do well every minute of every day.

Our goal is always to deliver the best services at the most affordable rates, focusing on improving our
customer’s quality of life. This is our challenge and it's who we are.

It is my hope that through this annual report, our customers will gain a better understanding of the
importance of what we do for them.

Keep up the good work and may God bless you.

LTS —

Joseph "Joey” Duenas
Chairman, CCU

Message from the Chairman

COMMITTEE ON UTILITIES, TRANSPORTATION,
PUBLIC WORKS AND VETERAN'S AFFAIRS

THOMAS C. ADA
Senator, 33rd Guam Legislature
Chairman, Committee on Utilities

Hafa Adai,

| commend the Guam Waterworks Authority on another year of exceptional performance.

2015 was a year of significant accomplishments led by the management at GWA and the CCU. Your

wise counsel, integrity and effective management has established an organization-wide commitment to
excellence. As a result, your shared vision has guided the Authority to its highest bond ratings in its history.
This is no small achievement, and our entire community is proud of this accomplishment.

Most importantly, | applaud the expertise and tireless work of all GWA employees. Day-in and day-out, your
efforts ensure that we all have access to safe, affordable, and reliable water and wastewater services. Our
entire island is thankful for your continued hard work and dedication. The foundation secured today by your
efforts will shape the future of GWA in positive ways for decades to come.

I am proud to serve you and our community as the Legislative Chair of the Committee on Infrastructure, and
look forward to a promising 2016 and beyond.

On behalf of all of us who make this island our home, Si Yu'os Ma‘ase.

PLEGN)

Thomas C. Ada
Senator, 33rd Guam Legislature
Chairman, Committee on Utilities



Chief Engineer

Once again, the GWA engineering department was
challenged in 2015 with initiating and managing

vital water and wastewater Capital Improvements
Plans (CIP) that were intended to meet Court Order
requirements and/or improve systems reliability

and efficiency. To meet the challenge, engineering
personnel worked closely with water and wastewater
operations management to identify critical system
needs that offered the highest rate of return with
respect to improved service delivery and cost savings.
In addition, GWA engineering continued to engage
project management assistance from the Program
Management Office (PMO) to handle critical projects
that had tight deadlines linked to federal funding and/
or projects that would result in new programmatic
initiatives related to system preventive measures. The
continued push of project delivery by GWA engineering
is also reflected in the updated CIP, which was presented
to the CCU in October 2015. The CIP update revealed
steady funding encumbrances for the 20710 and 2013
Bonds, most notably the New Agat-Santa Rita WWTP
project which incurred about 40% of the 2013 bond
proceeds.

The CIP delivery bubble is anticipated to grow at a
constant rate for a couple more years. The level of
engineering staff, including the assistance from the
PMO, needs to be in line with meeting management
goals and expectations. To work towards delivery goals,
GWA engineering was fortunate to fill vacant positions
for the junior engineer under the CIP wastewater
section and a land agent under the Chief Engineer.
Plans to hire one additional junior engineer for capital
project delivery and a senior engineer embed with
operations are ongoing.

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT

System Improvement Projects

THOMAS CRUZ, P.E., MBA, CPM

Fiscal Year 2015 Accomplishments
« Constructed the second Barrigada 2MG Tank Project.

+ Construction activities for the Southern Sewer
Collection System Improvements project began with
the intention of reducing Infiltration and Inflow.

+ Design services for the Yigo/Astumbo Reservoir
Replacement Project were completed.

+ Completed the updated Capital Inprovements Plan
for 2015-2020, which included a substantial 2013 Bond
Fund reallocation of $48.2M for the New Agat-Santa
Rita WWTP project.

+ Notice to Proceed issued to PMO to update the 2006
Water Resources Master Plan.

« Work to update the wastewater hydraulic model
began allowing GWA to provide better customer
services for new development.

Goals for 2016

« Complete construction activities related to the
Hyundai and Santa Rosa water storage tanks.

« Complete the construction of the second 0.5MG
Chaot tank, as well as bring on-line the 0.5MG Agana
Heights water storage tank.

- Initiate construction activities for one (1) new water
production well in the north and five (5) production
wells requiring rehabilitation.

« Continue to work towards completing as-built
information input into the Geographic Information
System.

« Execute Phase V of the Line Replacement project to
replace leaking and old waterlines.

« Complete improvements identified in Sanitary Sewer
Evaluation Survey (SSES) for the Northern, Central
and Southern sewer collection systems.

« Complete the vertical construction works for the new
Agat-Santa Rita Wastewater Treatment Facility to
start treating wastewater by December 31, 2016.

« Complete design services for the Baza Gardens
wastewater improvement project as part of the 2011
Court Order.

« Complete design services for the Ugum, Palantat,
Hyundai, Santa Rita, Santa Rosa, Tumon #1/#2 and
Piti water storage tanks that require replacement or
major repair.

NORTHERN VILLAGES

Dededo, Harmon, Tumon, Tamuning, Yigo

Islandwide Projects:
« Wastewater, water and source water system
Master Plan Update (SRF)

y % 1
« Sewer Pump Station High Water Alarms (SRF)* /

« Fire Hydrant Replacement
« Systemwide District Meter Project
« System Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA)

Northern Water Line Replacement

Deep Water Well Drilling and Well Rehabilitation (SRF)*

Critical Sewer Pump Station Repair (SRF)*

Tumon Sewer Hot Spots \
Repair/Rehabilitation (SRF)* !
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Astumbo No. 2 Water Tank, 2MG

Tumon No. 2 Water Tank, TMG

Tumon No. 1 Water Tank, TMG

Bayside Sewer Pump
Station Improvements

Total Bond Funding:

2010: $118.8 Million
2013: $172.6 Million
2016: $143.3 Million

*USEPA Grant $44.8M

As of January 31st, 2016



SOUTHERN VILLAGES

Agat, Inarajan, Ipan, Malojloj, Merizo, Santa Rita,
Talofofo, Windward Hills, Umatac, Yona

CENTRAL VILLAGES

Hagdtra, Agana Hts., Asan, Barrigada,
Chalan Pago, Mangilao, Piti, Ordot, Sinajafna

Islandwide Projects:

- Wastewater, water and source water system
Master Plan Update (SRF)*

« Sewer Pump Station High Water Alarms (SRF)*

« Fire Hydrant Replacement

« Systemwide District Meter Project

Total Bond Funding:
2010: $118.8 Million
2013: $172.6 Million
2016: $143.3 Million

*USEPA Grant $44.8M

Laboratory Water Testing Facility A 015
s of January 31st,

Agana Heights Water Tank, 0.5MG
Agana Heights Booster Pump Station

©
. Yigo Islandwide Projects:
Route 4 Sewer Llne¢ - Wastewater, water and source water system
Improvement (SRF)* Master Plan Update (SRF)*
edo - Sewer Pump Station High Water Alarms (SRF)*
@ « Fire Hydrant Replacement

« Systemwide District Meter Project

Route 1 Sewer Line

Improvements (SRF)* Tumo

ik

)
>

Asan Spring Rehabilitation

<
H \mé\ing S Rita Wi Sti 4
Piti Water Tank, TMG ® L LaiEa’Yyater aagitia g | g
v Tank, TMG e
y N Agana Barrigada N

P Agana /
Heights -,

__ ()
Sinajana i

Heights
) Sinajana
Tamuning Sewer .

Hot Spots Repair/ U Ordot .‘
Rehabilitation (SRF)* K Chalan

I e Manengon Water Tank, 2MG
Access Booster Station Upgrade

Barrigada No. 1 Water Tank, 2MG

Barrigada No. 2 Water Tank, 2MG . . .
Windward Hills Booster Station

- Energy Efficient Pumps

4\7 Central Water Line Replacement
4 . \ Rte 2 Sewer A
Bt Santa Rita B 0 o Improvements 1/ Agat
undai Water Tank, * = ) .
@ 4 (SRF) @ Sanitary Sewer Evaluation Survey (SSES)
(Baza Gardens-Talofofo) Sewer Rehab (SRF)*

Ugum Water Tank, 2MG

Santa Rita

Talofofo

Talofofo [
|
|

Mangilao No. 2 Water Tank, 2MG
Talofofo Sewer Pump Stations (SRF)*

Chalan Pago Pump Station (SRF)* S
TNAlf'A Agat . N TNAIf_A
racKin rackin
< Santa Rita  \ Stationg

Malojloj Booster Pump Station Upgrade

Station Pago Bay Booster Pump Station
u Wastewater ! . | Malojloj Elevated Booster Pump Station
Treatment |
Water Wells Rehabilitation (SRF)*  Total Bond Funding: ’(ZaSrI,QtWWTP) ! Sty BERETN,
inifa Water Tan
2010: $118.8 Million :
Chaot No.T Water Tank, 0.5MG 2013: $172.6 M’”’on Inarajan Booster Pump Station
. Chaot No.2 Water Tank, 0.5MG 2016: $143-3 Million Vi
Umatac/Merizo Sanitary Sewer Evaluation Survey (SSES)

*USEPA Grant $44.8M WWTP Study (Agat-Umatac) Sewer Rehab (SRF)*

Cocos Island S———— Southern Water Line Replacement

Cocos Island
ocos Islan / As of January 31st, 2016 ,



VICTOR TORRES
Manager, IT

Fiscal Year 2015 Accomplishments

2015 brought a huge leap forward for the IT department
and its internal customers the employees of GWA. Not
only did our small department move 60% of the GWA
employee base into a new facility effortlessly but we also
managed to transition from a twenty year old legacy
system to our new Customer Information System known
as the Oracle Customer Care and Billing System (CC&B).
This was a huge undertaking, and going live in March of
2015 was the culmination of over 2 years of extensive
planning, training and exhaustive meetings. We continue
to manage, train and expand with our new system which
has tremendous potential to better serve our customers.
After all, that's what improved technology is all about —
serving our customers more efficiently and effectively.
We are also pleased that this year we were able to get

a Board member to chair the newly formed Information
Technology and Cyber Security Committee. Commissioner
Bamba named Chair in 2015 is a welcome addition to our
many activities and goals that we want to achieve in the
coming months and years.

Other notable achievements were:
« Implemented a new Point of Sale System for Cashiers.

« Implemented a Voice over IP Telephone System for the
Agency.

Assisted in overhaul of the new CCU website.

Worked with the Public Information Office in the areas
of all social media components such as Instagram,
YouTube and web posting.

Welcomed the addition of two new employees.

Goals for 2016

+ Implement a Mobile Workforce Management Solution.

+ Implement an Enterprise wide Archival Solution.

+ Upgrade network Infrastructure to reflect Cyber
Security policies and standards.

+ Implement SCADA systems.

“..that's what improved
technology is all about —
serving our customers
more efficiently
and effectively.”

_

‘network hardwa e and software systems of
 its enterprise business software solutions,
electronic mail, website and desktop
computing environments. The division
consists of Systems and Programming,
Computer Operations, and Networking.
Services are also provided outside of regular
business hours to perform customer billings,
system backup and recovery procedures,
network maintenance and system services.
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Division Report

ZEney

The Human Resources Division (HRD) under the
leadership of the Personnel Services Administrator,
Zina Pangelinan-Charfauros, has the primary
responsibility for working with all employees in
handling their employment issues and requests. HRD
assists management in a number of employment
related issues, included but not limited to: hiring,
termination, discipline, compensation, benefits, and
other employee relation matters.

The HRD provided services in support of our employees
are the most valuable resource in achieving our Mission
to provide safe and reliable water and wastewater
services. HRD endeavors to act as a catalyst in the
professional development of all our employees, so that
they can contribute at optimum levels towards the
success of GWA. The division works to assist over 300
employees in their training needs.

+ Assisted in the development and advancement of
19 employees to advanced certification levels in 4
different categories in the water and wastewater
divisions.

« Completed employee evaluations.

Processed recruitments for 26 positions in areas of
Engineering, Administrative, Finance, Legal, IT, and
Operations.

« Continuation and expansion of the GWA
Apprenticeship Program. Four Apprentices are
completing requirements by 2017. This is a three
year program and is in partnership with the U.S.
Department of Labor, the Agency for Human
Resources Development and the Guam Community
College. Upon completion of the program,
apprentices will have received a Journeyman
Certificate as Pump Service and Plant Instrument
Technicians.

HUMAN RESOURCES

ZINA PANGELINAN-CHARFAUROS

Personnel Services Administrator

Work to establish a formal program for Operations
staff; and consult on career goals/paths.

Implement a new program for operations; staff
career development: T.A.S.K. (Training, Attributes,
Skills, Knowledge).

Work with other divisions on developing SOP for
training and development.

Institute a general orientation program for all new
employees (first time ever).

The HRD is a comprehensive human
resources operation. It consists of the
following:

¢ Recruitment

« Position Classification
and Compensation

« Employee Training
and Development

« Employee Management Relations

» Benefits and Records




PAUL J. KEMP
Assistant General Manager
of Compliance and Safety

Fiscal Year 2015 Accomplishments

GWA continues to successfully manage the 11/10/2011
Court Order (CO) to EPA satisfaction.

GWA Compliance Laboratory has maintained
Certification for EPA Compliance Monitoring.

GWA Compliance Laboratory has been completed.

GWA Safety Training with Water M&O and Utilities
Services continues Advanced Safety (Specialized)
Training.

Ugum Surface Water Treatment Plant Continuous
Membrane Filtration (Submerged) process water quality
continues to exceed all required standards.

GWA is working with GEPA to execute a Wellhead
Protection Plan.

GWAT's planned Back-Flow/Cross-Connection control
program is pending final review by GWA's PMO and
USEPA.

GWA has implemented its wastewater Source Control
program and USEPA has approved the operation.

The GWA Sewer Hook-Up Revolving Loan Fund
program continues to be available. For details

see: http://guamwaterworks.org/documents/
SewerFactSheet057192010.pdf.

Goals for 2016

Bid out the construction of the newly designed GWA
Compliance Laboratory and start construction.

Continue to manage compliance with the 2011 Court
Order and the EPA Significant Findings on the Water
Systems (CO and SF).

Continue to manage compliance with all other SDWA,
CAA, CWA and OSHA compliance requirements in a
timely manner.

Expand the drafted wastewater Source Control program
with PMO final review and USEPA support.

Recruit additional Source Control Inspectors.
Expand the Advanced Safety Training Program.
Recruit addition Source Control Inspectors.
Expand the Advance Safety Training Program.
Recruit additional Safety Inspectors.

Implement the proposed Back-Flow/Cross-Connection
control program, including the creation of the needed
staff position as called for in SF 23.

Continue work to maintain the downward trend to bring
GWAT's safety record to 100% safe == Go for “"ZERO"
(accidents).
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ELIZABETH “LISA”
SAN AGUSTIN

Utility Services
Administrator

GWA:'s Utility Services Division (USD) is comprised of
service deliverers from our Collections Unit, Customer
Call Center, Customer Service Unit, Disconnect/Reconnect
Team, Dispute Resolution and Document Control Team,
Meter Reading Unit, Revenue Protection and Recovery
Unit, and our Administrative Support Team. With over 40
employees, this division serves the community of Guam
from three delivery points island wide—Gloria B. Nelson
Public Service Building in Fadian Mangilao, GPWA Julale
Satellite Office in Julale Shopping Center, and the GPWA
Upper Tumon Satellite Office. With dedication and an
unwavering commitment to improved service, GWA's
Utility Service team worked tirelessly and purposefully to
deliver the GWA mission to our island ratepayers in the
always hectic and extremely busy conditions of GWA.

There were many challenges and opportunities in

2015. A new customer service information system was
implemented, 6,557 Post 2070 meters needed to be
replaced, the Meter Reading Unit returned to the Utility
Services Division, and progress was made on GWA's
Reorganization process. Through all this activity, USD
worked steadfastly and diligently. Huge kudos and Si Yu'os
Ma’‘ase to this dedicated team for forging ahead amid the
day-to-day GWA challenges. This division is committed to
seizing the opportunities to improve not only our quality of
service but also our relationship with the island ratepayers
we are so privileged to serve.

In March 2015, GWA implemented our new Customer
Information System, Customer Care & Billing (CC&B),
allowing GWA to better serve our ratepayers via improved,
more robust technology, and automated processes

and solutions. After 20 years of using the former
customer information system in 2015 the division faced
the huge undertaking to best prepare and train for an
implementation of this magnitude while simultaneously
keeping all the three delivery points staffed and operating
normally. This challenge was enormous however working
closely and tenaciously with our equally dedicated
partners in this project, CC&B implementation success and
seamless Go-Live experience remains a testament of what
can be achieved when a team is committed to, focused on,
and driven towards success.

Shortly after the March 2015 New CIS Implementation,
the division was tasked in April 2015 with taking the
lead in changing out 6,557 Post 2010 water meters. As
this project steadily progressed, the additional task

With over 40 employees, this division serves
the community of Guam from three delivery
points island wide—Gloria B. Nelson Public

Service Building in Fadian Mangilao, GPWA‘*

Julale Satellite Office in Julale Shopping
Center, and the GPWA Upper Tumon Satellite
Office. With dedication and an unwavering
commitment to improved service, GWA'’s
Utility Service team worked tirelessly and
purposefully to deliver the GWA mission to
our island ratepayers in the always hectic and
extremely busy conditions of GWA.
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flexible, robust and
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GWA to reach more
ratepayers timely and
effectively...”
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Our Disconnect/Reconnect Unit received and field
completed over 26,000 work orders in calendar year 2015.
This unit of six field personnel investigate and complete all
requests for reconnection, name changes, disconnection,
meter related verifications, meter leaks, meter change
outs, and other meter complaints island-wide. With

the meter replacement project near end and our new
GWA Meter Test Facility fully operational, it can now be
expected that efficiencies in this unit will also be realized
in 2076.

The Meter Reading Unit returned to the Utility Services
Division in February 2015 after a 12-month reassignment
to GWA's Water Operations Division. The timing of

this return just one month before the March 2015 new
CIS implementation was very helpful to facilitate the
necessary training, parallel testing, and rehearsals.

In 2015 alone, the number of necessary changes and
refining of business processes and procedures in the new
CIS environment affecting the Meter Reading Unit was
substantial. This unit's ability to adapt to the changes
and modify processes and procedures for desired results
has been impressive. The meter reading unit successfully
collected over 400,000 monthly meter reads both
electronically and manually in 2015.

GWA's Revenue Protection & Recovery Unit processed and
investigated over 50 reports of illegal connections and
unauthorized use of water services in calendar year 2015.

Overall division improvements in calendar
year 2015

« An updated and more robust customer information
system implementation allowing for improved quality of
service.

- A third service delivery point for customer service at
the Gloria B. Nelson Public Service Building, Fadian
Mangilao, offering our ratepayers a third option when
visiting the GWA Customer Service Unit.

« A more flexible, robust, and useful telephone payment
reminder system allowing GWA to reach more
ratepayers timely and effectively.

+ Meter reading efficiencies realized by the meter
replacement project effort allowing for timely reads,
more successful electronic reads, and accurate, timely
billings for our ratepayers.

+ Implementation of My Water Self Service Web Portal
allowing ratepayers immediate access to billing and
payment information 24/7.

+ Implementation of a new automated customer sign-
in kiosk at all 3 delivery points allowing for improved
service, adherence with front of the line privilege
statutes, and better reporting of the customer
experience.

+ Daily average wait and service time notification for all
3 service points on GWA's Facebook page, offering our
customers the option of selecting the locations knowing
the average length of time to wait and how long it will
take to process requests.

« Implementation of the new Shoretel phone system in the
Call Center allowing for improved Call Center services
and reporting.

+ Upgrade and replacement of 80% of division computers
allowing for faster and more improved service.

Goals for 2016

« Itis the goal of the Utility Services Division to remain
committed to service excellence and continual
improvement of our service quality. This commitment
supports the following goals in 2016 to bring GWA to an
improved level of service.

« To implement phone system improvement that will offer
ratepayers the option of getting their account balance
via telephone 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

+ To implement GWA outbound SMS and email
notification services giving ratepayers who sign up
immediate GWA account information as early as
possible.

+ Toincrease Call Center representatives’ availability to
answer ratepayers’ calls for service.

- To update, refine, and improve unit performance
measurements for service quality improvements and
efficiency.

+ To have the resources necessary to improve collections
and more aggressively collect delinquent revenues.

+ To have the resources necessary to improve the
turnover days for work order requests.

« To more aggressively and efficiently identify, resolve,
and recover lost revenues and to educate our
community on the consequences of water theft.

+ To heed the call of today’s tech savvy ratepayer for
more automated methods of communication and
customer relationship management via the increased
use of automated solutions and processes that increase
service of quality.

+ To properly structure the division to address account
dispute resolution and “back of office” functions
(Dispute Resolution and Document Control) via the
GWA Reorganization Effort.

+ To complete both Post 2010 and 2010 Court Ordered
Meter Replacement Projects.

 Toincrease training and development opportunities
division-wide.
+ To resume the USD Team Building Program in FY2016.

« To continue to foster a culture of professional respect
and to create an environment that facilitates positivity,
creativity, respect, productivity, and efficiency.

19



WATER OPERATIONS &
MAINTENANCE (O&M)

Division Report

VINCENT PANGELINAN
O&M Manager for
Water Distribution

RON TOPASNA
O&M Manager for
Water Production/
Treatment

The Water Operations and Maintenance Division consists
of 97 employees who are dedicated to bringing safe
drinking water to all of Guam’s residents. Each employee
helps in managing approximately 625 miles of water
lines, 120 wells, the Ugum surface water treatment
plant, 25 water booster pump stations and 27 reservoirs
throughout Guam.

Fiscal Year 2015 Accomplishments
+ Implemented the booster pump maintenance program.

+ Initiated construction of Pago Bay, Windward Hills, and
Malojloj booster pump station upgrades.

« Increased inventory for ongoing maintenance of needed
parts for repairs/replacement.

« Waterline replacement program throughout Guam.
+ Performed pump or motor replacements on 28 wells.

+ Responded to and completed 5,456 work orders for low
water pressure/service leaks/main breaks.

Goals for 2016

+ Implement GWAS first ever formal asset management
program.

« Complete work on Pago Bay, Windward Hills, and
Malojloj booster pump stations; outfit with energy
efficient fixtures.

+ Renewed efforts to permanize and expand leak
detection program.

« Launch the Fire Hydrant replacement and maintenance
program. Crews and contractor will be installing 300
units across Guam.

+ Implement a formal valve exercise program.

20
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ANTHONY “TONY" P.
CHARGUALAF

O&M Manager for
Wastewater Collection

DAVID FLETCHER
O&M Manager for
Wastewater Treatment

GWA's Wastewater Division consists of 57 employees who
serve as good stewards of our environment and ensure
the Island’s wastewater is properly collected, treated, and
the effluent we discharge does not harm our Island or its
waters. Employees in this division oversee, manage, and
operate 78 sewer pump stations, approximately 275 miles
of sewer lines and 7 wastewater plants throughout Guam.

Fiscal Year 2015 Accomplishments
« Pagachao Pump Station rehabilitation.

+ High water local level alarms installation on
approximately 50 of our 78 wastewater pump stations.

+ Upgraded 8 of our wastewater pump stations.

« Safety and security improvements to 11 of our
wastewater pump stations.

« Initiated design of sewer lines in Agat, Asan, and
Hagatna.

+ Responded to over 1,000 trouble calls for sewer backups

or blockages.

+ Inspected 45 miles of sewer lines using CCTV
technology.

+ Worked with GWA Engineering on design plans for
the Agat-Santa Rita Wastewater Treatment Plant
(ASRWWTP)

+ Worked with GWA Engineering on design plans for the

Baza Gardens Wastewater Transmission Line to connect

to ASRWWTP.

Goals for 2016
+ Construction of sewer lines in Agat, Asan and Hagatna.

+ Procurement and delivery of a new pumper truck
($375,000).

+ Implementation of new CCTV equipment to
continuously inspect wastewater lines.

+ Rehabilitation of 4 southern wastewater pump stations.

« Completion of the new ASRWWTP by December 31,
20176.

v
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Guam Waterworks Authority

EMPLOYEES

Abay, Stuart Lee
Acfalle, Antonette Dione
Adams, Julie C.

Aguilar, Maryann R.
Aguon, Benny T.
Aguon, Daniel A.
Aguon, Edward A
Aguon, Eric M.

Aguon, Joseph Anthony C.
Aguon, Lester D.
Aguon, Peter F.

Aguon, Prudencio F.
Aguon, Steven T.
Alvarez Jr., Jose

Apiag, Severin Hilary A.
Apuron, Manuel P.
Aquiningoc, Kenneth J.
Aquiningoc, Rita Rozanne
Arceo, Bryan J.

Arceo, Erik F.

Arceo, Peter J.

Arceo, Tommy J.
Arriola, Norma Marie |.
Asuncion, Raymond G.
Ballendorf, Heidi M.
Barcenilla, Zachary J.
Barcinas, Benbenido M.
Beleno, Kathleen B.
Bell, Henry J.
Benavente Il, Michael J.
Benavente, Elena P.
Benavente, Joseph M.

Benavente, Linda Frances C.

Bensan, Gloria P.
Bermudez, Julius G.
Blake, Jr. Steven E.
Blas, Angeninna R.

Blas, JayRyan T.

Blas, John K.T.

Blas, Kenneth Q.

Blas, Melchor M.

Borja, Ann D.

Borja, Jeffrey M.

Borja, Michael C.

Borja, Peter J.

Brown, Larry C.

Butcher, Devon M.
Cabuhat Jr., Geronimo P.
Cabuhat, Elizabeth C.
Calvo, Jude G.

Camacho, Antonio C.
Camacho, Tera Lynn S.
Camacho, TeresaMarie B.
Carino, Rylma Nida A.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Commissioners
Consolidated Commission on Utilities:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Guam Waterworks Authority (GWA), a
component unit of the Government of Guam, which comprise the statements of net position as of
September 30, 2015 and 2014, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in
net position and of cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Guam Waterworks Authority as of September 30, 2015 and 2014, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of a Matter

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, in 2015, GWA adopted Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension
Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 68. As a result of adopting these standards, GWA has elected to restate its 2014
financial statements to reflect the adoption of these standards. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 11 as well as the Schedule of Funding
Progress on page 46, the Schedule of Proportional Share of the Net Pension Liability on page 47,
and the Schedule of Pension Contributions on page 48, be presented to supplement the financial
statements.  Such information, although not a part of the financial statements, is required by
GASB who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Financial Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The Schedule of Certain Operating and Maintenance Expenses, the Schedule of
Construction Work in Progress, the Schedule of Net Position, Revenue, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position for the System Development Charge Fund, and the Schedule of Operating Revenues on
pages 49 through 52 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, such
additional information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as
a whole.

The Schedule of Employee and Other Data on page 53 has not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January
22, 2016, on our consideration of GWA's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering GWA’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Dl N

January 22, 2016
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s management of the Guam Waterworks Authority (GWA), we offer readers of GWA’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015. We
encourage readers to consider the information presented here and in our basic financial statements,
which begin on page 12.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the GWA’s basic financial
statements. GWA'’s basic financial statements are for a single proprietary fund and include the financial
statements, notes to those financial statements and other supplementary and statistical information.

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

GWA'’s operations are accounted for as a single proprietary fund using the full accrual basis of
accounting. In this regard, GWA operations are accounted for in a manner similar to a private
enterprise. Within this one proprietary fund, GWA segregates revenues and expenses for various
purposes such as operations, debt service and capital improvements, but that segregation does not
create separate proprietary funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found beginning on page 17 of
this report.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
supplementary and statistical information. Supplementary and statistical information can be found
beginning on page 46 of this report.

Financial Condition and Results

The Authority’s total net position increased by $18.6 million during the fiscal year (see table below).
However, the Authority restated prior year due to the recognition of the Authority’s proportionate share
of the unfunded retirement liability under the Government of Guam Retirement Fund.

The net increase in current assets of about $12.9 million is due to increases in restricted and
unrestricted cash, trade, and other receivables.

The net increase in property, plant and equipment of $24 million is due primarily to on-going in-progress
construction of wastewater treatment plant, upgrades to pump station improvements, transmission
lines, meter replacement program, ground water chlorination project, and acquisition of mechanical and
electrical equipment.

The Authority’s net investment in capital assets represents 109% of total net position. The net amount
invested in capital assets decreased by $0.58 million compared to prior year.

GUAM WATERWORKS AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
September 30, 2015 and 2014

In 2015, GWA adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and
GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the
Measurement Date - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. GASB Statements No. 68 and
No. 71 establish standards of accounting and financial reporting for defined benefit pensions and
defined contribution pensions provided to employees of state and local government. GWA
participates in a single-employer pension plan as defined by GASB Statement No. 68. The
implementation resulted in the recognition of pension expense as well as the reporting of deferred
outflows and inflows of resources and a net pension liability based on GWA'’s proportionate share
of those of the overall plan. Refer to Note 2 for cumulative change and Note 8 for details of GASB
Statement No. 68.

Summary Statement of Net Position

As Restated As Restated 2015 to 2014 Comparison
September 30, September 30, September 30, Increase/ %

2015 2014 2013 (Decrease) Change
Current and other assets $ 248055723 § 264751640 § 124,019,740 $§ (16,695,917) -6.31%
Property, plant and equipment, net 360,109,966 336,039,840 322,178,207 24,070,126 7.16%
Deferred outflows of resources 6,128,089 6,156,238 3,970,324 (28,149) -0.46%
Total assets and deferred outflows $ 614293778 $ 606947718 § 450,168,271 $ 7,346,060 1.21%
Current and other liabilities $ 56371599 § 61,451 578 % 68,272,796 $ (5,079,979) -8.27%
Long-term debt 389,165,861 396,569,482 228,590,066 (7,403 ,621) -1.87%
Deferred inflows of resources 3,668,590 2,303,348 - 1,265,242 54.93%
Total liabilities and deferred inflows 449,106,050 460,324,408 296,862,862 (11,218,358) -2.94%

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 180,072,079 180,655,378 184,944 929 (583,299) -0.32%
Restricted 15,898 661 12,934,743 11,712,242 2,963,918 22.91%
Unrestricted (30,783,012) (46,966 811) (43,351,762) 16,183,799 -34.46%
Total net position 165,187,728 146,623,310 153,305,409 18,564,418 12.66%
Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net position $ 614293778 § 606,947,718 §$ 450,168271 $ 7,346,060 1.21%

Operating income increased 73.1% from the previous year, from $16.8 million to $29.2 million in
FY2015. A combination of factors, as illustrated on page 14, contributed to the significant improvement
but growth was derived primarily from rate increases.

Much like in the previous fiscal years, operating revenues outpaced operating expenses in terms of the
proportion of growth from the preceding year. GWA saw operating revenues improve from $82.7
million to $93.1 million in FY2015, or approximately 12.6%, while on the other hand, operating costs
decreased from $65.9 million to $64 million in FY2015, or a 2.9% decrease from the previous year.
The table below illustrates past trends dating back to FY2013.

The total operating revenues of $93.1 million increased by $10.4 million or 12.6% and operating
expenses of $64 million decreased by $1.9 million or 2.9% for the current year resulting in net operating
income of $29.2 million or 73.1% increase when compared to the prior year (see table below).



GUAM WATERWORKS AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Water revenues (total) increased by $6.3 million over the prior fiscal year due in part to a 11.8%
increase in water rates. There were revenue dollar increases in commercial, government, hotel,
and residential customer classes.

Wastewater revenues (total) increased by $5.0 million or 17.2% over the prior fiscal year. A
14.5% rate increase in sewer charges was approved for the current year. There were revenue
dollar increases in all customer classes.

Operating expenses decreased by $1.9 million or 2.9% over the prior fiscal year. The
contributing factor was due to the recognition of the Authority’s proportionate share of the
unfunded retirement liability under the Government of Guam Retirement Fund.

Net non-operating expenses were reduced by $12.9 million due to increases in revenues.
Capital contributions were grants from the U.S. Government.

Of the total water and wastewater revenue of $59.5 million and $33.9 million, system
development charges (SDC) represented $0.573 million and $0.610 million, respectively. Thus,
the total SDC for the current fiscal year total is $1.2 million.

Results of Operations/Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

As Restated 2015 to 2014 Comparison
September 30, September 30, September 30, Increase/ %
2015 2014 2013 (Decrease) Change
Revenues:
Water § 59518287 § 53241495 § 48003668 §$ 6,276,792 11.79%
Wastewater 33,886,360 28,906,106 26,695,804 4,980,254 17.23%
Other 706 657 573,483 462,030 133,174 23.22%
Bad debts (980,243) 310 (361,281) (980 ,553) -316307.42%
Total operating revenues 93,131,061 82721394 74 800,221 10,409 667 12.58%
Expenses:
Power purchases 14,026,448 16,426,402 17 508,372 (2,399 ,954) -14.61%
Water purchases 5,098,872 5,179,240 4,570,862 (80,368) -1.55%
Sludge (waste) disposal fees 1,343,767 1,494,012 988,876 (150,245) -10.06%
Salaries, wages and benefits 16,168,167 17,991,125 20,058,840 (1,822,958) -10.13%
Depreciation 14 543 396 13,351,158 14,319,394 1,192,238 8.93%
Administrative and general 6,503,317 6,234,980 6,007,108 268,337 4.30%
Contractual 2,793,267 2,681,070 3,733,593 112,197 4.18%
Retiree healthcare costs and other benefits 3,491,101 2,518,851 2,418,349 972,250 38.60%
Total operating expenses 63,968,335 65,876,838 69,605,394 (1,908,503) -2.90%
Net operating income 29,162,726 16,844 556 5,194 827 12,318,170 73.13%
Non-operating revenues (expenses) 6,680,260 (7,054 654) (1,643,566) 13,734 914 -194.69%
Less: Interest Expense (20,865 ,205) (20,031 506) (13,538 ,467) (833,699) 4.16%
Total non-operating revenues
(expenses), net (14,184 945) (27,086,160) (15,182 ,033) 12,901,215 -47.63%
Income (loss) before capital contributions 14 977,781 (10,241 604) (9,987 ,206) 25,219,385 -246.24%
Capital contributions 3,586,637 3,559 505 4,480 568 27 132 0.76%
Change in net position 18,564,418 (6,682,099) (5,506 ,638) 25,246 517 -377.82%
Net position - beginning year 146,623,310 153,305,409 197,148 976 (6,682,099) -4.36%
Restatement of beginning net position - (38,336,929) -

Net position - end of year § 165187728 § 146623310 § 153305403 § 18564418 12.66%
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Revenue improvements in FY2015 are largely attributable to the private customer classes as noted
below. In FY2015, these sectors consist primarily of commercial, hotel and residential customers and
accounted for over 89% of the increase. The tables below illustrates the distribution of revenues
among major customer classes:

Annual Water Revenues (Excluding System Development Charges)

2015 to 2014
% Change Comparison
Increase
FY15 FY14 FY13 (Decrease)
Class Type
Agricultural $ 375,120 $ 392,105 $ 360,534 -16% $ (61,882)
Golf Course 84,844 55,369 63,909 47% 26,295
Comm 12,529,070 10,581,895 8,885,334 13% 1,388,377
Federal 18,449 19,705 10,041 -11% (2,111)
Government 6,083,130 5,435,944 5,051,300 7% 381,566
Hotel 11,132,531 9,466,265 8,037,569 12% 1,149,989
Irrigation 18,425 38,822 72,064 -57% (22,145)
Residential 28,705,488 26,459,394 24,908,309 6% 1,533,677
TOTAL $ 58,947,057 $52,449,449  $ 47,353,060 8% $ 4,393,767
Annual WasteWater Revenues (Excluding System Development Charges)
2015 to 2014
% Change Comparison
Increase
FY15 FY14 FY13 (Decrease)
Class Type
Comm $ 6,988,489 $ 5,608,846 $ 4,693,909 22% $ 1,230,179
Federal 4,926,563 4,171,820 4,141,550 17% 704,004
Government 3,325,856 2,309,397 2,131,248 32% 748,169
Hotel 9,266,983 7,548,103 6,623,338 21% 1,589,110
Residential 8,768,445 8,427,181 8,386,589 4% 342,487
TOTAL $33.276.336  $28,065347  §$25.976,634 16% $ 4,613,950

Operating expenses are generally driven by power, water purchases and salaries expenses.
Historically, these costs account for almost 2/3" of operating and maintenance expenses. In FY2015,
operating and maintenance expenses decreased, going from $65.9 million in FY2014 to $64 million in
FY2015. The table below illustrates the changes among major cost components.
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Operating and Maintenance Expenses
2015 vs 2014

Increase % Change

2015 2014 2013 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Water purchases $ 5,098,872 $ 5,179,240 $ 4,570,862 $ (80,368) -1.55%
Power purchases 14,026,448 16,426,402 17,508,372 (2,399,954) -14.61%
Waste disposal costs 1,343,767 1,494,012 988,876 (150,245) -10.06%
Salaries and wages 16,168,167 17,991,125 20,058,840 (1,822,958) -10.13%
Administrative and general 6,503,317 6,234,980 6,007,108 268,337 4.30%
Contractual 2,793,267 2,681,070 3,733,593 112,197 4.18%
Retiree health care cost and other benefits 3,491,101 2,518,851 2,418,349 972,250 38.60%
Depreciation 14,543,396 13,351,158 14,319,394 1,192,238 8.93%
TOTAL $63,968,335  $ 65,876,838 $ 69,605,394 $ (1,908,503) -2.90%

As reported on the Statements of Net Positon, the Authority’s total net position increased by $18.6
million during the fiscal year due to decrease in unrestricted position.

Capital Assets

The Authority had $360 million (net of accumulated depreciation) invested in a broad range of utility
capital assets as of September 30, 2015. The investment in capital assets includes buildings,
improvements, water treatment plants, filter plants, water transmission and distribution mains, water
storage facilities, pump stations, wastewater treatment facilities, machinery and equipment, see Table
below.

In the current fiscal year 2015, capital assets increased by $24.1 million (net) or 7.2% over the prior
fiscal year. The increase is consistent with the Authority’s implementation of a five-year (FY 15 to FY
19) capital improvement program.

The Authority’s revenue, long-term debt, and grant-in-aid are used to finance capital investments.

This year’s major capital additions included:

WASTE WATER
Southern District Wastewater $ 435,000
Northern District Wastewater 816,000
Central District Wastewater 750,000
Central Wastewater Moratorium Project 11,970,000
Others 176,000
$ 14,147,000
WATER
Water Booster Pump Station $ 285,000
General Plant Improvements 3,826,000
Line Replacement/Leak Repair Program 1,630,000
Mechanical/Electrical Equipment 879,000
Meter Replacement Program 5,169,000
Ugum Water Treatment Plant Intake 29,000
Reduction of Navy Water Purchases 121,000
Tank Repair & Replacement Program 15,022,000

$ 26,961,000
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Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

2015 to 2014
Comparison
September 30, September 30, September 30, Increase
2015 2014 2013 (Decrease) % Change
Plant, buildings and equipment, net $307,154,511  $280,801,599 $295,207,115  $ 26,352,912 9.38%
Land 64,288 64,288 64,288 - -

Construction in progress 52,891,167 55,173,953 26,906,804 (2,282,786) -4.14%
Total $360,109.966 $336,039,840 $322,178,207 $ 24,070,126 1.16%

For additional information concerning capital assets, please refer to Note 5 to the financial statements.
Debt

As of September 30, 2015, the Authority had total long-term debt outstanding of $389.2 million, which is
a decrease of $7.4 million or -1.87% over the prior year representing repayment of debt in accordance
with debt service requirements.

The Authority is required by bond covenants to maintain principal, interest, and reserve funds for the
bond issue outstanding. In addition, the Authority is required to set rates and charges to yield revenues
equal to at least 125% of the current annual debt service requirements of the outstanding 2010, 2013
and 2014 refunding revenue bond series. The Public Utilities Commission set the requirement at 175%.

Moody’s Investor Services, Fitch Rating and Standard & Poor’s assigned a rating of Baa2, BBB- and A-
respectively to GWA’s Water and Wastewater Revenue Bonds Series 2013. The ratings are important
benchmarks of issuer’s ability to meet its financial obligation. Each rating agency incorporates a rating
scale indicating credit quality of the issuer. The scales are comprised of alphabetical symbols such as
“‘AAA”, “AA”, “A”, “BBB”, “BB”, “B” etc. For example, categorical ratings in the “AAA”, “AA” and “A”
range denote high credit quality meaning the issuer has a high capacity to meet its financial
commitments whereas categorical rating in the “BBB”, “BB” and “B” range denote average credit
quality. The lower the number of alpha characters assigned indicates the issuer is more susceptible to
adverse effects or changes in circumstances and economic conditions than those with a higher number
of alpha characters.

Long-Term Debt

2015 to 2014
Comparison
September 30, September 30, September 30, Increase
2015 2014 2013 (Decrease) % Change
2005 Bond Series $ - $ - $ 91,148,341  $ - -

2010 Bond Series 117,770,000 118,825,000 116,634,755 (1,055,000) -0.89%
2013 Bond Series 172,630,000 172,630,000 - - 0.00%
2014 Bond Series 84,568,085 87,602,919 - (3,034,834) -3.46%
Bank Notes 14,197,776 17,511,563 20,086,970 (3,313,787) -18.92%
Total $ 389,165,861 $396,569.482 §$228,590,066 $(7,403.,621) _-1.87%

For more information concerning debt, please refer to Note 6 to the financial statements.



GUAM WATERWORKS AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Management’s Discussion and Analysis for the year ended September 30, 2014 is set forth in GWA’s
report on the audit of financial statements which is dated June 28, 2015. That Discussion and Analysis
explains in more detail major factors impacting the 2014 financial statements. A copy of that report can
be obtained by contacting the CFO office at (671) 300-6860.

Looking Forward

Outlook, Challenges, and Opportunities

Much like previous years, water supply reliability, reduced dependence on DOD Navy water supply,
water quality, leak detection, line repair, meter replacement and complying with requirements of the
2011 Federal Court Order will continue to be the focus for 2016

A major emphasis for 2016 will also be to transition to a preventive maintenance from a reactive
maintenance approach. Management recognizes that the need for a stepped-up preventive
maintenance program is at its highest point in view of infrastructure investment of more than $400
million by way of past bond borrowings to replace, rehabilitate and repair assets.

To build on the capacity to perform timely routine maintenance, inspections of equipment and facilities
before they fail or before they occur or develop into major repairs, certain additional operation and
maintenance (O&M) expenses will have to be incurred to make this transition.

O&M expenses that will be influenced for the most part by an escalated preventive maintenance
include among other expenses: (1) an increased supplies and materials inventory for critical parts and
preventive maintenance supplies in order to provide timely resources for routine maintenance (2) an
accelerated vehicle maintenance and replacement program in response to increased demands for
working vehicles; and (3) the recruitment of skillsets to perform timely inspections and maintenance of
assets so that the asset would reach its estimated useful life.

Debt service on senior revenue bonds will increase in 2016. This is due to the most part to capitalized
interest on the 2013 System Revenue Bonds which will be fully exhausted by the second quarter of
FY2016.

A new financing in the amount of $161 million is planned for FY2016. The financing will be undertaken
in conjunction with GWA’s 2014 — 2019 Capital Improvement Plan. It is projected to generate
approximately $129 million of water and wastewater projects. The projects are primarily related to a
2011 Federal Court Order. The financing has been approved by the CCU and PUC and the bond sale
is expected to be completed in mid-February 2016.

There will be continued impetus in 2016 and beyond to fund certain capital expenditures by way of
revenue funds to help reduce the need to borrow for projects. This is pursuant to GWA'’s approved
2014-2018 rate plan which embarked on a goal of generating approximately $48 million during the five
(5) year rate plan period.

Plans for 2016 also includes continued funding of a Debt Service and Working Capital reserve to help
achieve debt coverage requirements and help smooth the need for rate increases in the future. Over
$9 million has been generated since approval of the policies in 2014.

GUAM WATERWORKS AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
September 30, 2015 and 2014

A $30 million, 7.5%, five (5) year Bank of Guam million Loan matured on June 15, 2015. The loan
consisted of two (2) promissory Notes, a $25 million and $5 million note. The $5 million note has been
fully satisfied and a $15 million balloon payment due on the $25 million note was re-financed through
2020 at an interest rate of 5.25%.

The Hagatna and Northern District Wastewater treatment plants require upgrades to secondary
treatment. Discussions with U.S. EPA are on-going relative to scheduling. GWA and U.S. EPA had
recently started discussion on a financial capability model which is typically the first of several things
leading up to a scheduling timeline. This discussion is in its early stages and have yet to produce any
significant milestones as of this writing.

GWA expects to receive federal funding for the Northern District plant upgrade as the buildup from the
relocation of U.S. military personnel from Japan to Guam will directly impact the plant. DOD has
offered to provide up to $170 million to assist with the upgrade. Approximately $105 million has
already been appropriated and authorized to DOD for water and wastewater projects. The funding is
subject to meeting certain federal requirements and these conditions are actively being discussed in
order to get the upgrade underway.

Request for Information

This financial report is to provide interested parties with a general overview of GWA'’s finances. If you
have any questions about this report or need additional information, you may submit a request in writing
to: Chief Financial Officer, Guam Waterworks Authority, 578 N. Marine Corp Drive, Tamuning, GU
96913, or telephone (671) 300-6860.
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GUAM WATERWORKS AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Statements of Cash Flows, Continued
Years Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

2014
(As Restated)

2015

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by

operating activities:

16,844,556

29,162,726 $

Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided

by operating activities:

13,351,158

14,543,396

Depreciation

(310)

980,243
(2,046,666)
(3,551,525)

Bad debts (recovery)/expense

(1,184,765)

Recovery of provision for inventory obsolescence

Non-cash pension costs
(Increase) decrease in assets:

(1,860,744)
(97,569)

(2,964,001)
1,082,164

Materials and supplies inventory

Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts receivable

(489)

24,033

Accrued payroll and employee benefits

Employee annual leave

Customer deposits

Other liabilities
DCRS sick leave liability

Accounts payable

28,399,257

35,676,255 §

Net cash provided by operating activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

GUAM WATERWORKS AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
September 30, 2015 and 2014

A $30 million, 7.5%, five (5) year Bank of Guam million Loan matured on June 15, 2015. The loan
consisted of two (2) promissory Notes, a $25 million and $5 million note. The $5 million note has been
fully satisfied and a $15 million balloon payment due on the $25 million note was re-financed through
2020 at an interest rate of 5.25%.

The Hagatna and Northern District Wastewater treatment plants require upgrades to secondary
treatment. Discussions with U.S. EPA are on-going relative to scheduling. GWA and U.S. EPA had
recently started discussion on a financial capability model which is typically the first of several things
leading up to a scheduling timeline. This discussion is in its early stages and have yet to produce any
significant milestones as of this writing.

GWA expects to receive federal funding for the Northern District plant upgrade as the buildup from the
relocation of U.S. military personnel from Japan to Guam will directly impact the plant. DOD has
offered to provide up to $170 million to assist with the upgrade. Approximately $105 million has
already been appropriated and authorized to DOD for water and wastewater projects. The funding is
subject to meeting certain federal requirements and these conditions are actively being discussed in
order to get the upgrade underway.

Request for Information

This financial report is to provide interested parties with a general overview of GWA'’s finances. If you
have any questions about this report or need additional information, you may submit a request in writing
to: Chief Financial Officer, Guam Waterworks Authority, 578 N. Marine Corp Drive, Tamuning, GU
96913, or telephone (671) 300-6860.
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GUAM WATERWORKS AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Reporting Entity

(2)

The Guam Waterworks Authority (GWA) is a component unit of the Government of Guam
(GovGuam). GWA is subject to the regulations of the Public Utility Commission of Guam (PUC).
GWA became an autonomous agency in 1996 under Public Law 23-119 and derives its revenues
mainly from its water and wastewater system. The water system is engaged in the production,
treatment, and distribution of water to villages and communities of Guam. The wastewater
system is engaged in the collection and treatment of wastewater from residences and industries
in the villages of Guam. GWA is governed by a five-member elected Consolidated Commission
on Utilities (CCU). PUC determines such matters as rates and charges for services.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

GWA utilizes the flow of economic resources measurement focus. The financial statements are
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units using the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

Net Position

Net position represents the residual interest in GWA’s assets after liabilities are deducted and
consists of the following categories:

Net investment in capital assets - include capital assets, restricted and unrestricted, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by outstanding debt, net of debt service reserve.

Restricted nonexpendable - net position subject to externally imposed stipulations that require
GWA to maintain them permanently.

Restricted expendable - net position whose use is subject to externally imposed stipulations that
can be fulfilled by actions of GWA pursuant to those stipulations or that expire with the passage of
time.

Unrestricted - net position that is not subject to externally imposed stipulations. Unrestricted net
position may be designated for specific purposes by action by management or the CCU or may
otherwise be limited by contractual agreements with outside parties.

(2)

GUAM WATERWORKS AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Net Position, Continued

At September 30, 2015 and 2014, restricted net position consists of the following:
2015 2014

Island Water and Sewer Infrastructure Development Fund $ 7,852,884 $ 6,466,443

Revenue Fund 7,035,771 5,575,605
Meter reserve 648,433 636,592
Sewer Hook-up Revolving Fund 84,684 72,662
Navy surcharge 276,889 183,441

$ 15,898,661 $ 12,934,743

All of GWA's restricted net position is expendable.
Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Risk Management

GWA is exposed to various risks of loss; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; operation
liability; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses; natural disasters and employee
health, dental and accident benefits. There is commercial insurance coverage obtained to
provide for claims arising from most of these matters. No material losses have been sustained as
a result of GWA's risk management practices during the past three years.

Allowance for Doubtful Receivables

The allowance for doubtful accounts is stated at an amount which management believes will be
adequate to absorb possible losses on accounts receivable that may become uncollectible based
on evaluations of the collectability of these accounts and prior collection experience. The
allowance is established through a provision for bad debts charged to expense. Bad debts are
written off against the allowance based on the specific identification method.

Materials and Supplies Inventory

Materials and supplies inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market with cost determined by
the first-in, first-out method.
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GUAM WATERWORKS AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Property, Plant and Equipment

Plant in service of $324,988,118 is stated at estimated historical cost as determined by an
independent engineering consultant at September 30, 1998. Plant in service acquired
subsequent to that date is stated at cost. Non-utility property and equipment are stated at cost.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
respective assets. Current policy is to capitalize items over $5,000.

Noncurrent Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

The purpose of noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents is for long-term capital
improvements and bond related activities.

Deferred Outflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statements of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not
be recognized as an outflow of resources (deduction of net position) until then. GWA has
determined the loss on defeasance of the 2014 series refunding bonds, the differences between
expected and actual experience with regard to economic or demographic factors in the
measurement of the total pension liability and pension contributions made subsequent to the
measurement date qualify for reporting in this category.

Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition to liabilities, the statements of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not
be recognized as an inflow of resources (additions to net position) until then. GWA has
determined the differences between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments
and changes in proportion and differences between GWA pension contributions and proportionate
share of contributions qualify for reporting in this category.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are accrued and reported as a liability in the period earned. Annual
leave expected to be paid out within the next fiscal year is accrued and is included in current
liabilities. Employees are credited with vacation leave at rates of 104, 156 or 208 hours per fiscal
year, depending upon their service time with GWA. Accumulation of such vacation credits is
normally limited to 480 hours at fiscal year end; however, management has exercised its authority
in certain conditions to allow accumulation of up to 720 hours. All such vacation credit is
convertible to pay upon termination of employment.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Plant in service of $324,988,118 is stated at estimated historical cost as determined by an
independent engineering consultant at September 30, 1998. Plant in service acquired
subsequent to that date is stated at cost. Non-utility property and equipment are stated at cost.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
respective assets. Current policy is to capitalize items over $5,000.

Noncurrent Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

The purpose of noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents is for long-term capital
improvements and bond related activities.

Deferred Outflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statements of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not
be recognized as an outflow of resources (deduction of net position) until then. GWA has
determined the loss on defeasance of the 2014 series refunding bonds, the differences between
expected and actual experience with regard to economic or demographic factors in the
measurement of the total pension liability and pension contributions made subsequent to the
measurement date qualify for reporting in this category.

Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition to liabilities, the statements of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not
be recognized as an inflow of resources (additions to net position) until then. GWA has
determined the differences between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments
and changes in proportion and differences between GWA pension contributions and proportionate
share of contributions qualify for reporting in this category.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are accrued and reported as a liability in the period earned. Annual
leave expected to be paid out within the next fiscal year is accrued and is included in current
liabilities. Employees are credited with vacation leave at rates of 104, 156 or 208 hours per fiscal
year, depending upon their service time with GWA. Accumulation of such vacation credits is
normally limited to 480 hours at fiscal year end; however, management has exercised its authority
in certain conditions to allow accumulation of up to 720 hours. All such vacation credit is
convertible to pay upon termination of employment.
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Compensated Absences, Continued

During the year ended September 30, 2003, Public Law 27-05 was implemented, reducing the
amount of leave employees can earn in a fiscal year (either 104 or 156 hours) and the maximum
accumulation amount of annual leave to 320 hours. Any annual leave earned in excess of 320
hours, but not to exceed 100 hours as of February 28, 2003 shall be credited to the employees’
sick leave. Public Law 27-106 does not allow lump sum compensation or retirement credit for
annual leave in excess of three hundred twenty (320) hours.

Pensions

Pensions are required to be recognized and disclosed using the accrual basis of accounting.
GWA recognizes a net pension liability for the pension plan in which it participates, which
represents GWA'’s proportional share of excess total pension liability over the pension plan assets
— actuarially calculated — of a single employer plan, measured as of the fiscal year-end. Changes
in the net pension liability during the period are recorded as pension expense, or as deferred
inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources depending on the nature of the change, in
the period incurred. Those changes in net pension liability that are recorded as deferred inflows
of resources or deferred outflows of resources that arise from changes in actuarial assumptions or
other inputs and differences between expected or actual experience are amortized over the
weighted average remaining service life of all participants in the qualified pension plan and
recorded as a component of pension expense beginning with the period in which they are
incurred. Projected earnings on qualified pension plan investments are recognized as a
component of pension expense. Differences between projected and actual investment earnings
are reported as deferred inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources and amortized as
a component of pension expense on a closed basis over a five-year period beginning with the
period in which the difference occurred.

Bond Premiums and Discounts

Bond premiums and discounts are amortized using the straight-line method, which approximates
the effective yield method, over the life of the related bond issue.

Revenue Recognition

Customer water meters are read on a cyclical basis throughout a monthly period based on the
route schedules of GWA. Revenue is recognized in the period that meters are read. Wastewater
treatment is billed at a flat rate of $26.61 per month for residential accounts and 80% of current
water consumption for commercial and government accounts. At the end of each month, unbilled
revenues are accrued for each cycle based on the most recent cycle billing. Unbilled receivables
at September 30, 2015 and 2014 are $2,724,515 and $2,968,184, respectively, and are included
as receivables in the accompanying financial statements.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of net position and the statements of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents is defined as cash deposits in banks, time certificates of deposit, and short-term
investments in U.S. Treasury obligations with initial maturities of three months or less.

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents do not include restricted
cash and cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments and related investment earnings are recorded at fair value. Fair value is the amount
at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than a forced or liquidation sale and are primarily determined based on quoted
market value.

Capitalization of Interest

GWA capitalizes interest on construction in progress based on the weighted average interest rate.
During the years ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, interest of $9,791,856 and $5,555,246,
respectively, was capitalized.

Capitalized Labor Costs

GWA capitalizes related labor costs incurred on construction in progress. During the years ended
September 30, 2015 and 2014, labor costs of $2,344,682 and $1,961,373, respectively, were
capitalized.

Operating and Non-Operating Revenue and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses generally result directly from the operation and maintenance of
GWA. Non-operating revenues and expenses result from capital and financing activities, costs
and related recoveries from natural disasters, and certain other non-recurring income and
expenses.

Grants and Contributions

Grants and contributions consist of government mandated and voluntary nonexchange
transactions. Approved capital grants not yet received approximated $4,106,732 and $1,264,254
at September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Income Taxes

As an instrumentality of GovGuam, GWA and all property acquired by or for GWA, and all
revenues and income therefrom are exempt from taxation by GovGuam or by any political
subdivision or public corporation thereof and from all taxes imposed under the authority of the
Guam Legislature, or with respect to which the Guam Legislature is authorized to grant
exemption.
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New Accounting Standards

During the year ended September 30, 2015, GWA implemented the following pronouncements:

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and GASB
Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the
Measurement Date - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, which revise and
establish new financial reporting requirements for most governments that provide their
employees with pension benefits. The implementation of these statements did have a
material effect on the accompanying financial statements resulting in the restatement of
GWA'’s fiscal year 2014 financial statements to reflect the reporting of net pension liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources for its qualified
pension plan and the recognition of pension expense in accordance with the provisions of
GASB Statement No. 68. The implementation of GASB Statement No. 68 results in GWA
reporting deferred outflows of resources of $3,649,267 and a net pension liability of
$41,986,196 as of October 1, 2013. GWA'’s net position as of October 1, 2013 and GWA's
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the year ended September
30, 2014 have been restated to reflect the required adjustments as follows:

As Previously

Reported As Restated

Adjustment

As of October 1, 2013:

Net position $ 191,642,338

$ (38,336,929)  $ 153,305,409

For the year ended September 30:
Salaries, wages and benefits

expense $ 19,175,890 $_(1.184,765) $_17,991,125
Change in net position $_(7.866,864) $_ 1,184,765 $ _(6.682,099)

As of September 30:

Deferred outflows of from pension $ - $__ 3,687,568 $__ 3,687,568
Net pension liability $ - $ (38.536,384)
$
$

$ (38,536,384)
Deferred inflows of from pension $ - (2,303,348) $_(2,303,348)

Net position $ 183,775,474 (37,152,164)
GASB Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government
Operations, which improves accounting and financial reporting for state and local
governments' combinations and disposals of government operations.  Government
combinations include mergers, acquisitions, and transfers of operations. A disposal of
government operations can occur through a transfer to another government or a sale. The
implementation of this statement did not have a material effect on the accompanying
financial statements.

$ 146,623,310
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New Accounting Standards, Continued

In February 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application,
which addresses accounting and financial reporting issues related to fair value measurements
and requires entities to expand their fair value disclosures by determining major categories of debt
and equity securities within the fair value hierarchy on the basis of the nature and risk of the
investment. The provisions in Statement 72 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2015. Management believes that the implementation of this statement only requires additional
disclosures to be made about fair value measurements, the level of fair value hierarchy, and
valuation techniques and will not have a material effect on the financial statements of GWA.

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions
and Related Assets That Are Not Within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to
Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68, which aligns the reporting requirements for
pensions and pension plans not covered in GASB Statements 67 and 68 with the reporting
requirements in Statement 68. The provisions in Statement No. 73 are effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2015, with the exception of the provisions that address employers and
governmental nonemployer contributing entities for pensions that are not within the scope of
Statement 68, which are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2016. Management
does not believe that the implementation of this statement will have a material effect on the
financial statements of GWA.

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit
Plans Other Than Pension Plans, which replaces Statements No. 43, Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB
Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, and addresses financial
reporting requirements for governments whose employees are provided with postemployment
benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB). The provisions in
Statement No. 74 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2016. Management
believes that the implementation of this statement will have a material effect on the financial
statements of GWA.

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which replaces the requirements of Statements
No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other
Than Pensions, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent
Multiple-Employer Plans, and provides guidance on reporting by governments that provide OPEB
to their employees and for governments that finance OPEB for employees of other governments.
The provisions in Statement No. 75 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017.
Management believes that the implementation of this statement will have a material effect on the
financial statements of GWA.
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(3)

New Accounting Standards, Continued

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles for State and Local Governments, which eliminates two of the four categories of
authoritative GAAP that exist under the existing hierarchy prescribed by Statement 55. The two
categories that will remain under the new standard are (1) GASB Statements and (2) GASB
technical bulletins and implementation guides in addition to AICPA guidance that the GASB
clears. The provisions in Statement No. 76 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2015. Management does not believe that the implementation of this statement will have a
material effect on the financial statements of GWA.

In August 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures, which requires
governments that enter into tax abatement agreements to disclose certain information about the
agreements. The provisions in Statement No. 77 are effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2015. Management does not believe that the implementation of this statement will
have a material effect on the financial statements of GWA.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

The bond indenture agreements for the 2010, 2013 and 2014 series revenue bonds require the
establishment of special funds to be held and administered by trustees and by GWA. In addition,
proceeds from borrowings to fund capital improvements are maintained by GWA in construction
accounts. Funds in these accounts are required by loan agreement or public law to be used to
fund capital improvements.

At September 30, 2015 and 2014, investments and cash held by trustees and by GWA in these
special funds and accounts are as follows:

2015

Held By Trustee Held By GWA
2014 Bond 2014 Bond
2010 Bond 2013 Bond Indenture 2010 Bond 2013 Bond Indenture
Indenture Funds Indenture Funds Funds Indenture Funds Indenture Funds Funds Total
Current restricted cash:
Revenue Fund $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 7,035,771 $ 7,035771
Capital Improvement Fund - - - - - 2,903,865 2,903,865
Operations and
Maintenance Fund - - - - - 4,833,482 4,833,482
Noncurrent restricted cash:
Operations, Maintenance,
Renewal, and Replacement - - - - - 14,753,392 14,753,392
Revenue Fund
Capitalized Interest Fund 2,016,050 - - - 2,334,792 - 4,350,842
Construction Fund - - - 17,726,953 125,495,988 894,965 144,117,906
Investments:
Bond Reserve Fund - 1,165,573 7,707,602 - - - 8,873,175
Debt Service Fund 7,566,460 12,031,688 1,790,607 - - - 21,388,755

$ 9,582,510 $ 13,197,261  $ 9,498,209 $ 17.726,953 $ 127,830,780  $ 30,421,475 $ 208,257,188

GUAM WATERWORKS AUTHORITY
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Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments, Continued

2014

Held By Trustee Held By GWA
2014 Bond 2014 Bond
2010 Bond 2013 Bond Indenture 2010 Bond 2013 Bond Indenture
Indenture Funds Indenture Funds Funds Indenture Funds Indenture Funds Funds Total
Current restricted cash:
Revenue Fund $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 5,575,605 $ 5,575,605
Capital Improvement Fund - - - - - 3,835,075 3,835,075
Operations and
Maintenance Fund - - - - - 3,083,481 3,083,481
Noncurrent restricted cash:
Operations, Maintenance,
Renewal, and Replacement - - - - - 14,753,392 14,753,392
Revenue Fund
Capitalized Interest Fund 1,892,850 - - - 11,665,718 - 13,558,568
Construction Fund - - - 26,766,505 139,110,452 1,161,340 167,038,297
Investments:
Bond Reserve Fund 7,707,602 7,707,602
Debt Service Fund 7,566,460 12,031,688 388,825 19,986,973
$ 9,459,310 $ 12,031,688  $ 8,096,427 $ 26,766,505 $ 150,776,170  $ 28,408,893 $ 235,538,993

The deposits and investment policies of GWA are governed by 15 GCA 21, Investments and
Deposits, in conjunction with applicable bond indentures. Authorized investments include
obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government or agencies of the U.S. government;
bonds, notes or other indebtedness rated in the highest rating by Moody’s Investors Service
(Moody’s) or Standard & Poor’s Corporation (S&P); obligations issued by the Federal National
Mortgage Association or the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation with remaining maturities
of not more than three years; any bonds or other obligations of any state of the U.S. or any
agency, instrumentality or local government unit of such state which are rated in the highest
rating category of either Moody’s or S&P; demand and time deposits in or certificates of deposit
or bankers acceptances with U.S. domestic banks which have a rating of their short term
certificates of deposit of A-1 or better by S&P and P-1 by Moody’s and mature no more than 360
days after purchase; commercial paper which is rating in the highest classification by S&P and
Moody’s; and money market funds rated AAA or better by S&P.

A. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, GWA’s deposits may not
be returned to it. Such deposits are not covered by depository insurance and are either
uncollateralized, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution or
held by the pledging financial institution but not in the depositor-government’s name. GWA
does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk.
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A.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Continued

As of September 30, 2015 and 2014, the carrying amount of GWA'’s total cash and cash
equivalents was $195,804,797 and $217,387,316, respectively, and the corresponding bank
balances were $197,818,711 and $218,424,173, respectively. Of the bank balance amount,
$16,217,638 and $11,390,125, respectively, is maintained in financial institutions subject to
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance. The remaining amount of
$181,601,073 and $207,034,048, respectively, represents short-term investments held and
administered by GWA’s trustees in GWA’s name in accordance with various trust
agreements and bond indentures. As of September 30, 2015 and 2014, bank deposits in
the amount of $524,836 and $686,482, respectively, were FDIC insured. GWA does not
require collateralization of its cash deposits; therefore, deposit levels in excess of FDIC
insurance coverage are uncollateralized. At September 30, 2015 and 2014, $15,692,802
and $10,703,643, respectively, of cash and cash equivalents are subject to custodial credit
risk.

Restricted cash and cash equivalents consists of cash received for specific capital projects
and for bond indenture related accounts. The composition of current and noncurrent
restricted cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

GUAM WATERWORKS AUTHORITY
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(3) Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments, Continued

2015 2014
Current restricted:
Capital projects $ - $ 164,004
Operation and maintenance 6,107 6,100
Navy surcharge 276,889 183,441
Meter reserve 648,433 636,592
Sewer Hook-up Revolving Fund 84,684 72,662
Revenue Fund 7,035,771 5,575,605
Capital Improvement Fund 2,903,865 3,835,075
Operations and Maintenance Fund 4,833,482 3,083,481
Debt Service Fund 5,446,188 1,342,062
Moratorium project 5,455 9,308
Island Water and Sewer Infrastructure
Development Fund 7,852,884 6,466,443
29,093,758 21,374,773
Noncurrent restricted:
2005 Bond Indenture Funds:
Operations, Maintenance, Renewal

and Replacement Reserve Fund 14,753,392 14,753,392
Construction Fund 894,965 1,161,340

2010 Bond Indenture Funds:
Construction Fund 17,726,953 26,766,505

2013 Bond Indenture Funds:
Construction Fund 125,495,988 139,110,452
Capitalized Interest Fund 2,334,792 11,665,718
161,206,090 193,457,407

Total restricted cash and cash equivalents

$ 190,299,848

$ 214,832,180

B.

Investments

As of September 30, 2015 and 2014, GWA’s investment in debt securities had the following
maturities:

2015
Investment Maturities (in years)

Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1-5
U.S. Treasury and Governmental

agency obligations

$ 32,277,980 ¢ 32277980 $__ -

2014
Investment Maturities (in years)

Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1-5
U.S. Treasury and Governmental

agency obligations

$ 29,587,425 §$ 29587425 $ _ -

Credit risk for investments is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment
will not fulfill its obligations.

GWA's exposure to credit risk at September 30, 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

2015
Moody’s Rating Total Domestic International
AAA $ 32,277,980 $ 32277980 $ __ -
2014
Moody’s Rating Total Domestic International
AAA $ 29,587,425 §$ 29587425 $ _ -

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to the transaction, GWA will not be able to recover the value of investment or
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. GWA'’s investments are
held and administered by trustees. Accordingly, these investments are exposed to custodial
credit risk. Based on negotiated trust and custody contracts, all of these investments were
held in GWA’s name by GWA'’s custodial financial institutions at September 30, 2015 and
2014.
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B. Investments, Continued

Concentration of credit risk for investments is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of
an entity’s investment in a single issuer. GASB Statement No. 40 requires disclosure by
issuer and amount of investments in any one issuer that represents five percent (5%) or
more of total investments for GWA. As of September 30, 2015 and 2014, GWA has no
investment representing five percent (5%) or more of total investments.

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
debt instruments. GWA does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates.

(4) Receivables

Receivables at September 30, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

2015 2014

Customers:
Private $ 22,136,853 $ 19,521,128
Government 4,411,987 2,855,237
26,548,840 22,376,365
Federal grants receivable 173,820 2,000
Guam Power Authority 344,766 1,544,169
Other 749,763 758,817

27,817,189 24,681,351

Less allowance for doubtful receivables:
Private (9,520,932) (8,449,380)
Government (747,300) (838,592)

(10,268,232) (9,287,972)
$ 17.548.957 $ 15.393.379

Substantially all customer receivables are from individuals, businesses and government agencies
located on Guam.
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Capital asset activities for the year ended September 30, 2015 are as follows:

Estimated Beginning Ending
Useful Balance Transfers Transfers Balance
Lives in October 1, and and September 30,
Years 2014 Additions Deletions 2015
Depreciable:
Utility Plant in Service
— Water 10-50 $ 271,403,753 $ 23,956,654 $ (580,303) $ 294,780,104
Utility Plant in Service
- Wastewater 25-50 245,042,975 14,032,751 (276,490) 258,799,236
General Fixed Assets 5-10 18,935,114 3,131,292 (453,753) 21,612,653
535,381,842 41,120,697 (1,310,546) 575,191,993
Accumulated Depreciation (254,580,243) (14,543,396) 1,086,157 (268,037,482)
280,801,599 26,577,301 (224,389) 307,154,511
Non-depreciable:
Land 64,288 - - 64,288
Construction Work in Progress 55,173,953 38,835,533 (41,118,319) 52,891,167
$ 336,039,840 $ 65412834 $ (41.342,708) $ 360,109,966
Capital asset activities for the year ended September 30, 2014 are as follows:
Estimated Beginning Ending
Useful Balance Transfers Transfers Balance
Lives in October 1, and and September 30,
Years 2013 Additions Deletions 2014
Depreciable:
Utility Plant in Service
— Water 10-50 $ 276,615,150 $ 2,174,775 $ (7,386,172) $ 271,403,753
Utility Plant in Service
- Wastewater 25-50 244,132,312 1,597,507 (686,844) 245,042,975
General Fixed Assets 5-10 19,292,743 185,495 (543,124) 18,935,114
540,040,205 3,957,777 (8,616,140) 535,381,842
Accumulated Depreciation (244,833,090) (13,351,158) 3,604,005 (254,580,243)
295,207,115 (9,393,381) (5,012,135) 280,801,599
Non-depreciable:
Land 64,288 - - 64,288
Construction Work in Progress 26,906,804 32,224,927 (3,957,778) 55,173,953
$ 322,178,207 $ 22,831,546 $ (8.969,913) $ 336,039,840
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Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt at September 30, 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

Revenue Bonds:

2010 Series revenue bonds, initial face value of
$118,825,000, interest at varying rates from 4% to
5.5% per annum, payable semiannually in January
and July, principal and mandatory sinking fund
payments in varying annual installments commencing
with a payment of $1,055,000 in July 2015,
increasing to $14,460,000 in July 2040.

2013 Series revenue bonds, initial face value of
$172,630,000, interest at varying rates from 5% to
5.5% per annum, payable semiannually in January
and July, principal and mandatory sinking fund
payments in varying annual installments commencing
with a payment of $2,695,000 in July 2020,
increasing to $25,880,000 in July 2043.

2014 Series refunding bonds, initial face value of
$85,600,000, interest at varying rates from 5% to 6%
per annum, payable semiannually in January and
July, principal and mandatory sinking fund payments
in varying annual installments commencing with a
payment of $2,900,000 in July 2015, maturity date in
July 2035.

Total revenue bonds payable
Less current maturities

Bond premium — 2014 series bonds, net
Bond discount — 2013 series bonds
Bond discount — 2010 series bonds

2015 2014

$ 117,770,000 $ 118,825,000

172,630,000 172,630,000

82,700,000 85,600,000

373,100,000 377,055,000
(4,910,000) (3.955,000)

368,190,000 373,100,000

5,337,921 5,604,534
(1,440,950)  (1,492,049)
(2,028,886) _ (2,109,566)

$ 370,058,085 $ 375.102.919
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Long-Term Debt, Continued

Revenue Bonds, Continued:

Year ending September 30, Principal
2016 $ 4,910,000
2017 5,040,000
2018 5,200,000
2019 5,420,000
2020 8,350,000

2021 through 2025 40,510,000
2026 through 2030 60,210,000
2031 through 2035 70,730,000
2036 through 2040 99,070,000
2041 through 2043 73,660,000

Interest

$ 19,648,317

19,522,301
19,366,797
19,182,802
18,949,325
86,626,981
75,795,881
60,600,463
42,259,319
19,872,463

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for principal and interest are as follows:

Total

$ 24,558,317
24,562,301
24,566,797
24,602,802
27,299,325
127,136,981
136,005,881
131,330,463
141,329,319

93,532,463

$ 373,100,000

Notes Payable:

Note payable to a bank in the original amount of
$25,000,000, interest at 7.75% per annum, due in
monthly installments of principal and interest of
$300,027 through June 2015; refinanced principal
balance of $14,856,080, interest at 5.25% per
annum, due in monthly installments of principal and
interest of $285,000 through June 2020.

Note payable to a bank in the original amount of
$5,000,000, interest at 7.75% per annum, due in
monthly installments of principal and interest of
$100,785 through June 2015.

Total notes payable
Less current maturities

$ 381,824,649

$ 754,924,649

2015 2014
$ 14,197,776  $ 16,637,110
- 874,453
14,197,776 17,511,563
(2,737,804) (3,308,220)
$ 11459972 $ 14,203,343
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Long-Term Debt, Continued

Notes Payable, Continued:

As of September 30, 2015, annual debt service requirements to maturity for principal and interest
are as follows:

Year ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 2,737,804 $ 682,196 $ 3,420,000
2017 2,886,981 533,019 3,420,000
2018 3,042,248 377,752 3,420,000
2019 3,205,865 214,135 3,420,000
2020 2,324,878 55,848 2,380,726
$ 14197776 $1,862,950 $ 16,060,726

2010 Series Revenue Bonds

On November 1, 2010, GWA entered into a supplemental indenture agreement for the issuance
of $118,825,000 Water and Wastewater System Revenue Bonds, Series 2010, to finance various
water and wastewater capital improvement projects. The 2010 bonds are limited obligations of
GWA payable solely from and secured by a pledge of revenues as defined in the indenture. The
bonds are subject to mandatory, optional and special redemption prior to maturity.

Total bond proceeds were $116,404,591, net of a bond discount of $2,420,409 and GWA incurred
closing costs of $2,805,108. The bond discount has been deferred and amortized on a straight
line basis over the average remaining life of the 2010 bonds.

Proceeds of the 2010 series bonds are to be used for the purpose of funding capital
improvements of water and wastewater systems, meeting certain requirements of the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency, to paying capitalized interest, to fund a deposit to the Bond
Reserve Fund, and paying related issuance costs.

All gross revenues, except System Development Charge (SDC) revenues, of GWA have been
pledged to repay the 2010 series bonds principal and interest. The debt service for the 2010
series bonds were $7,571,400 and $6,516,400 for each of the years ended September 30, 2015
and 2014 or approximately 8%, respectively, of pledged gross revenues.

2013 Series Revenue Bonds

On December 12, 2013, the Guam Waterworks Authority issued $172,630,000 Water and
Wastewater System Revenue Bonds, Series 2013, to fund capital improvement projects in
connection with the financing of its 5 year Capital Improvement Plan. A portion of the bond
proceeds was used to fund certain bond reserves, pay for capitalized interest and costs in
connection with the issue but, for the most part, the proceeds will be used to pay for capital
projects.

GUAM WATERWORKS AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes to Financial Statements
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Long-Term Debt, Continued

2013 Series Revenue Bonds, Continued

Total bond proceeds were $171,097,017, net of a bond discount of $1,492,049 and GWA incurred
closing costs of $2,961,409. The bond discount has been deferred and amortized on a straight
line basis over the average remaining life of the 2013 bonds.

The 2013 Bonds are limited obligations of GWA and are payable solely from, and secured solely
by a lien on and pledge of, revenues to secure the payment of principal and interest on the
Bonds. Revenues consist primarily of all gross income and revenue received by GWA from the
ownership or operation of the System, subject to the provisions of the Indenture and exclusive of
certain surcharges.

The debt service for the 2013 series bonds were $9,331,688 and $5,158,349 for the years ended
September 30, 2015 and 2014 or approximately 10% and 6%, respectively, of pledged gross
revenues.

2014 Series Refunding Bonds

On August 7, 2014, GWA issued the 2014 Bonds to refund all of GWA’s outstanding Guam
Waterworks Authority Water and Wastewater Revenue Bonds, Series 2005, and to pay costs of
issuing the 2014 Bonds. The proceeds for the refunding were transferred to an escrow agent who
used the proceeds to purchase U.S. Treasury Securities which are to be held by the escrow agent
in an irrevocable trust to pay the redemption price of the 2005 bonds and interest thereon to
become due on or prior to July 1, 2015 (redemption date). The advance refunding met the
requirements of an in-substance defeasance and the 2005 bonds were removed from the
accompanying financial statements. The advance refunding resulted in a loss on defeasance of
$2,468,670 representing the difference between the reacquisition price and the carrying amount
of the 2005 bonds. Although the advance refunding resulted in the recognition of an accounting
loss, GWA in effect reduced its aggregate debt service payments by almost $13,873,732 over the
next twenty years and obtained an economic gain (difference between the present values of the
old debt and the new debt service payments) of $8,352,503.

The Bonds are limited obligations of GWA and are payable solely from, and secured solely by a
lien on and pledge of, revenues to secure the payment of principal and interest on the Bonds.
Revenues consist primarily of all gross income and revenue received by GWA from the ownership
or operation of the System, subject to the provisions of the Indenture and exclusive of certain
surcharges.

Total bond proceeds were $92,533,037, including net bond premium of $5,619,665 and funds
from deposit in 2005 Bond Fund and Bond Reserve Fund of $1,284,068. GWA incurred closing
costs of $1,536,177. The net bond premium has been deferred and is being amortized on a
straight line basis over the average remaining life of the 2014 bonds.

The debt service for the 2014 series bonds commenced on January 1, 2015. The debt service for
the 2014 series bonds was $6,399,425 for the year ended September 30, 2015 or approximately
7% of pledged gross revenues.
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(7)

Bank Loans

On June 15, 2010, GWA entered into a $30 million bank loan for the purpose of: (a) funding a
portion of the cost of a moratorium project, (b) funding the Operation, Maintenance, Renewal and
Replacement Reserve Fund and Operations and Maintenance Fund as defined in the bond
indenture agreements for the 2005 series revenue bonds, and (c) payments of accounts payable
and other purposes. The loan is guaranteed by the Government of Guam and is entitled to the
full faith and credit of the Government of Guam. Pursuant to the loan, GWA pledged all revenues
but subject first, to a consent decree, and second, to the prior pledge and lien and other
provisions of the bond indenture agreements for the 2005 series revenue bonds refunded through
2014 series revenue bonds in 2014.

Change in Long-Term Liabilities

The following summarizes changes in GWA'’s long-term liabilities for the years ended September
30, 2015 and 2014:

GUAM WATERWORKS AUTHORITY
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(7) Change in Long-Term Liabilities, Continued

Outstanding

Outstanding

October 1, September 30,
2014 Increases Decreases 2015 Current
Long-term debt:
2010 series A bonds $ 118,825,000 $ - $(1,055,000) $ 117,770,000 $ 1,590,000
2013 series A bonds 172,630,000 - - 172,630,000 -
2014 series A and B bonds 85,600,000 - (2,900,000) 82,700,000 3,320,000
Notes payable 17,511,563 - (3,313,787) 14,197,776 2,737,804
Deferred amount:
Unamortized discount on 2010
bonds issued (2,109,566) - 80,680 (2,028,886) -
Unamortized discount on 2013
bonds issued (1,492,049) - 51,099 (1,440,950) -
Unamortized premium on 2014
bonds issued 5,619,665 - (269,744) 5,349,921 -
Unamortized discount on 2014
bonds issued (15,131) - 3,131 (12.000) -
396,569,482 - (7,403,621) 389,165,861 7,647,804
Other:
Employee annual leave 1,318,822 89,746 (4,606) 1,403,962 511,267
DCRS sick leave liability 1,255,580 284,927 - 1,540,507 -
Advances for construction 169,299 - (169,299) - -
Net pension liability 38,536,384 615,475 (5,104.,119) 34,047,740 -
$437,849,567 $ 990,148 $(12,681,645) $ 426,158,070 $ 8,159,071

Outstanding

Outstanding

October 1, September 30,
2013 Increases Decreases 2014 Current
Long-term debt:
2010 series A bonds $ 118,825,000 $ - - $118,825,000 $ 1,055,000
2013 series A bonds - 172,630,000 - 172,630,000 -
2014 series A and B bonds - 85,600,000 - 85,600,000 2,900,000
2005 series A bonds 88,485,000 - (88,485,000) - -
Notes payable 20,806,970 - (3,295,407) 17,511,563 3,308,220
Deferred amount:
Unamortized premium on 2005
bonds issued 2,663,341 - (2,663,341) - -
Unamortized discount on 2010
bonds issued (2,190,245) - 80,679 (2,109,566) -
Unamortized discount on 2013
bonds issued - (1,492,049) - (1,492,049) -
Unamortized premium on 2014
bonds issued - 5,619,665 - 5,619,665 -
Unamortized discount on 2014
bonds issued - (15,131) - (15,131) -
228,590,066 262,342,485 (94,363,069) 396,569,482 7,263,220
Other:
Employee annual leave 1,345,490 820,642 (847,310) 1,318,822 515,874
DCRS sick leave liability 1,211,126 44,454 - 1,255,580 -
Advances for construction 169,228 71 - 169,299 -
Net pension liability 41,986,196 2,459,113 (5.908,925) 38,536,384 -
$ 273,302,106 $ 265,666,765 $ (101,119,304) $ 437,849,567 $ 7,779,094

(8) Employees’ Retirement Plan

Defined Benefit Plan

A.

General Information About the Pension Plan:

Plan Description: GWA participates in the GovGuam Defined Benefit (DB) Plan, a single-
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the GovGuam Retirement Fund
(GGRF). The DB Plan provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to plan members
who enrolled in the plan prior to October 1, 1995. Article 1 of 4 GCA 8, Section 8105,
requires that all employees of GovGuam, regardless of age or length of service, become
members of the DB Plan prior to the operative date. Employees of a public corporation of
GovGuam, which includes GWA, have the option of becoming members of the DB Plan prior
to the operative date. All employees of GovGuam, including employees of GovGuam public
corporations, whose employment commences on or after October 1, 1995, are required to
participate in the Defined Contribution Retirement System (DCRS). Hence, the DB Plan
became a closed group.

A single actuarial valuation is performed annually covering all plan members and the same
contribution rate applies to each employer. GGRF issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the DB
Plan. That report may be obtained by writing to the Government of Guam Retirement Fund,
424 A Route 8, Maite, Guam 96910, or by visiting GGRF’s website — www.ggrf.com.



GUAM WATERWORKS AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2015 and 2014

(8) Employees’ Retirement Plan, Continued

Defined Benefit Plan, Continued

A.

General Information About the Pension Plan, Continued:

Plan Membership: As of September 30, 2014, the date of the most recent valuation, plan
membership consisted of the following:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 7,226
Terminated employees entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them 4,941
Current members 2,692

14,859

Benefits Provided: The DB Plan provides pension benefits to retired employees generally
based on age and/or years of credited service and an average of the three highest annual
salaries received by a member during years of credited service, or $6,000, whichever is
greater. Cost-of-living adjustments and other supplemental annuity benefits are provided to
members and beneficiaries at the discretion of the Guam Legislature.

Members who joined the DB Plan prior to October 1, 1981 may retire with 10 years of
service at age 60 (age 55 for uniformed personnel); or 20 to 24 years of service regardless
of age with a reduced benefit if the member is under age 60; or completion of 25 years of
service at any age.

Members who joined the DB Plan on or after October 1, 1981 and prior to August 22, 1984
may retire with 15 years of service at age 60 (age 55 for uniformed personnel); or 25 to 29
years of service regardless of age with a reduced benefit if the member is under age 60; or
completion of 30 years of service at any age.

Members who joined the DB Plan after August 22, 1984 and prior to October 1, 1995 may
retire with 15 years of service at age 65 (age 60 for uniformed personnel); or 25 to 29 years
of service regardless of age with a reduced benefit if the member is under age 65; or
completion of 30 years of service at any age.

Upon termination of employment before attaining at least 25 years of total service, a
member is entitled to receive a refund of total contributions including interest. A member
who terminates after completing at least 5 years of service has the option of leaving
contributions in the GGRF and receiving a service retirement benefit upon attainment of the
age of 60 years. In the event of disability during employment, members under the age of 65
with six or more years of credited service who are not entitled to receive disability payments
from the United States Government are eligible to receive sixty six and two-thirds of the
average of their three highest annual salaries received during years of credited service. The
DB Plan also provides death benefits.
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(8) Employees’ Retirement Plan, Continued

Defined Benefit Plan, Continued

A.

General Information About the Pension Plan, Continued:

Contributions and Funding Policy: Contribution requirements of participating employers and
active members are determined in accordance with Guam law. Employer contributions are
actuarially determined under the One-Year Lag Methodology. Under this methodology, the
actuarial valuation date is used for calculating the employer contributions for the second
following fiscal year. For example the September 30, 2013 actuarial valuation was used for
determining the year ended September 30, 2015 statutory contributions. Member
contributions are required at 9.5% of base pay.

As a result of actuarial valuations performed as of September 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011,
contribution rates required to fully fund the Retirement Fund liability, as required by Guam
law, for the years ended September 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, have been
determined as follows:

2015 2014 2013

Normal costs (% of DB Plan payroll) 15.92% 16.61% 17.52%
Employee contributions (DB Plan employees) 9.55% 9.50% 9.50%
Employer portion of normal costs (% of DB Plan payroll) 6.37% 7.11% 8.02%
Employer portion of normal costs (% of total payroll) 2.05% 2.39% 3.00%
Unfunded liability cost (% of total payroll) 24.09% 24.01% 24.33%
Government contribution as a % of total payroll 26.14% 26.40% 27.33%
Statutory contribution rates as a % of DB Plan payroll:

Employer 29.85% 30.03% 30.09%

Employee 9.50% 9.50% 9.50%

GWA'’s contributions to the DB Plan for the years ending September 30, 2015, 2014 and
2013 were $1,096,069, $1,191,600 and $1,274,361, respectively, which were equal to the
required contributions for the respective years then ended.
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(8) Employees’ Retirement Plan, Continued

Defined Benefit Plan, Continued

A.

General Information About the Pension Plan, Continued:

Actuarial Assumptions: Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of
September 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are
reported. The methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates are as
follows:

Valuation Date: September 30, 2014

Actuarial Cost Method: Entry age normal

Amortization Method: Level percentage of payroll, closed

Remaining Amortization Period: 16.58 years

Asset Valuation Method: 3-year smoothed market value

Inflation: 2.75%

Total payroll growth: 3.00% per year

Salary Increases: 4.50% to 7.50%

Expected Rate of Return: 7.00%
Discount Rate: 7.00%
Retirement age: 40% are assumed to retire upon first eligibility for
unreduced retirement. Thereafter, the probabilities

of retirement are 15% until age 65, 20% from 65-
69, and 100% at age 70.

Mortality: RP-2000 healthy mortality table set forward by 4
years for males and 1 year for females. Mortality for
disabled lives is the RP 2000 disability mortality
table with no set forwards.

Other information: Actuarial assumptions are based upon periodic

experience studies. The last experience study

reviewed experience from 2007-2011, and was first
reflected in the actuarial valuation as of September

30, 2012.
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Defined Benefit Plan, Continued

A.

General Information About the Pension Plan, Continued:

Discount Rate: The total pension liability is calculated using a discount rate of 7.0% that is a
blend of the expected investment rate of return and a high quality bond index rate. There
was no change in the discount rate since the previous year. The expected investment rate
of return applies for as long as the plan assets (including future contributions) are projected
to be sufficient to make the projected benefit payments. If plan assets are projected to be
depleted at some point in the future, the rate of return of a high quality bond index is used
for the period after the depletion date.

Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis: The following schedule shows the impact of the Net
Pension Liability if the discount rate used was 1% less than and 1% greater than the
discount rate that was used (7%) in measuring the 2014 Net Pension Liability.

1% Decrease in Current 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
6.0% 7.0% 8.0%

Net Pension Liability $ 43637759 § 34,047,740 $ 26.806.014

. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred

Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

Pension Liability: At September 30, 2015 and 2014, GWA reported a liability of $34,047,740
and $38,536,384, respectively, for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. GWA’s
proportion of the net pension liability was based on projection of GWA'’s long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of GovGuam and
GovGuam’s component units, actuarially determined. At September 30, 2015 and 2014,
GWA'’s proportion was 2.7319% and 2.9568%, respectively.

Pension Expense: For the years ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, GWA recognized
pension expense of $362,873 and $2,459,113, respectively.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources: At September 30, 2015 and 2014, GWA
reported total deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:
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B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions, Continued

2015 2014
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of  Inflows of Outflows of  Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience $ 252,600 $ - $ - 8 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments - 2,591,419 - 2,303,348
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 3,763,091 - 3,687,568 -

Changes in proportion and difference between GWA
contributions and proportionate share of contributions - 977,171 - -

$4,015,691 $3.568,500 $3.687,568 $2,303,348

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions at September 30, 2015 will be recognized in pension expense as

follows:
Year Ended
September 30
2016 $ (1,372,425)
2017 $ (647,855)
2018 $ (647,855)
2019 $ (647,855)

Defined Contribution Plan

Contributions into the Defined Contribution Retirement System (DCRS) plan by members are
based on an automatic deduction of 5% of the member’s regular base pay. The contribution is
periodically deposited into an individual investment account within the DCRS. Employees are
afforded the opportunity to select from different investment accounts available under the DCRS.

Statutory employer contributions into the DCRS plan for the years ended September 30, 2015 and
2014 are determined using the same rates as the DB Plan. Of the amount contributed by the
employer, only 5% of the member's regular pay is deposited into the member’s individual
investment account. The remaining amount is contributed towards the unfunded liability of the
defined benefit plan.

Members of the DCRS plan, who have completed five years of government service, have a
vested balance of 100% of both member and employer contributions plus any earnings thereon.

(8)
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Defined Contribution Plan, Continued

GWA'’s contributions to the DCRS Plan for the years ended September 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013
were $3,199,900, $2,994,520 and $2,849,337, respectively, which were equal to the required
contributions for the respective years then ended. Of these amounts, $2,667,022, $2,495,968
and $2,374,906 were contributed toward the unfunded liability of the DB Plan for the years ended
September 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Public Law 26-86 allows members of the DCRS to receive a lump sum payment of one-half of
their accumulated sick leave upon retirement. GWA has accrued an estimated liability of
$1,540,507 and $1,255,580 at September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, for potential future
sick leave payments as a result of this law. However, this amount is an estimate and the actual
payout may be materially different than estimated.

Other Post Employment Benefits

GovGuam, through its substantive commitment to provide other post-employment benefits
(OPEB), maintains a single-employer defined benefit plan to provide certain postretirement
healthcare benefits to retirees who are members of the GovGuam Retirement Fund. Under the
Plan, known as the GovGuam Group Health Insurance Program, GovGuam provides medical,
dental, and life insurance coverage. The retiree medical and dental plans are fully-insured
products provided through insurance companies. GovGuam shares in the cost of these plans,
with GovGuam’s contribution amount set each year at renewal. Current statutes prohibit active
and retired employees from contributing different amounts for the same coverage. As such,
GovGuam contributes substantially more to the cost of retiree healthcare than to active
healthcare. For the life insurance plan, GovGuam provides retirees with $10,000 of life insurance
coverage through an insurance company. Retirees do not share in the cost of this coverage.
Because the Plan consists solely of GovGuam’s firm commitment to provide OPEB through the
payment of premiums to insurance companies on behalf of its eligible retirees, no stand-alone
financial report is either available or generated.

For the years ended September 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013, GWA reimbursed GovGuam for certain
supplemental benefits for retirees, including contributions for the abovementioned Plan, as
follows:

2015 2014 2013

Supplemental benefits $ 662,852 $ 300,000 $ 455,675
Contribution to GovGuam

(COLA payments) 584,000 523,800 320,100

Medical and dental 2,244,249 1,695,051 1,642,574
$ 3,491,101 $ 2,518,851 $ 2,418,349
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The Government of Guam, pursuant to Public Law 23-119, assigned to GWA various real estate
property under GWA'’s administration. As of September 30, 2015 and 2014, the property has not
been recognized in the financial statements pending completion of formal transfer proceedings.

Agreements with the United States Navy

(11)

Pursuant to a Memorandum of Agreement, the U.S. Navy supplies water through its water system
to GWA for distribution and resale to non-military customers. Total purchases from the U.S. Navy
for the years ended September 30, 2015 and 2014 are $5,098,872 and $5,179,240, respectively.

Commitments and Contingencies

Merit System

In 1991, Public Law 21-59 was enacted to establish a bonus system for employees of GovGuam,
autonomous and semi-autonomous agencies, public corporations and other public
instrumentalities of GovGuam who earn a superior performances grade. The bonus is calculated
at 3.5% of the employee's base salary beginning 1991. GWA did not calculate or pay any
bonuses pursuant to the law from 1991 through 2012. As of September 30, 2015, GWA has not
assessed the impact of the requirements of the law for fiscal years 1991 to 2014. Therefore, no
liability which may ultimately arise from this matter has been recorded in the accompanying
financial statements.

Claims

Due to the nature of its operations, GWA is subject to various claims by private and governmental
customers and vendors for various alleged losses. Because an estimate of the amount or range
of potential loss cannot be determined at this time, no provision for any liability that may result
from such claims has been made in the accompanying financial statements.

Contract Commitments

Contract commitments in connection with projects currently in construction approximate
$48,915,477 at September 30, 2015, of which $4,106,732 will be funded by federal contracts from
the U.S. Government.

Program Management Office Services

On February 6, 2012, GWA entered into a contract for Program Management Office (PMO)
services to provide a wide variety of as needed program management services and general staff
assistance for the development of required utility infrastructure improvements. The PMO provides
GWA with additional resources to address the deadlines defined in the November 10, 2011 court
order and supports GWA staff in executing 2010 and 2013 Series Bond funded projects, military
buildup, and other related tasks. The PMO contract is for a five-year period with an option to
extend for two two-year periods. Contract commitments for the PMO services approximate
$5,404,549 as of September 30, 2015.
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(11) Commitments and Contingencies, Continued

Operating Lease

In January 2012, GWA entered into a three year office space lease with a monthly rental of
$13,655 that expired in January 2015. .

Rent expense under this agreement totaled $47,792 and $163,860 during the years ended
September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

In February 2015, GWA moved to a new building owned by Guam Power Authority (GPA). GWA
does not currently have a signed lease agreement with GPA but pays for its share of building
maintenance costs. GWA may be billed for rent expense in the future upon a decision of the
CCU.

Medicare

The Government of Guam and its component units, including GWA, began withholding and
remitting funds to the U.S. Social Security System for the health insurance component of its
salaries and wages effective October 1998. Prior to that date, the Government of Guam did not
withhold or remit Medicare payments to the U.S. Social Security System. If the Government is
found to be liable for Medicare payments on salaries and wages prior to October 1998, an
indeterminate liability could result. It has been the practice of GWA and all other component units
of the Government of Guam that payment of this health insurance component is optional prior to
October 1998. Therefore, no liability for any amount which may ultimate arise from this matter
has been recorded in the accompanying financial statements.

Single Audit Questioned Costs

GWA undergoes annual compliance audits to satisfy federal grantor requirements. Cumulative
questioned costs of $330,931 exist from these audits as of September 30, 2015. The questioned
costs will be resolved by the applicable grantor and due to GWA'’s inability to predict the ultimate
outcome of this matter, no provision for any liability, if any, that may result from this matter has
been made in the accompanying financial statements.

Court Order

In 2002, the U.S. Government filed a complaint against GWA and the Government of Guam for
alleged violations under the Federal Clean Water Act (CWA) and the Safe Drinking Water Act
(SDWA). Because of GWA’s non-compliance with the National Primary Drinking Water
Regulations, the U.S. Government is seeking both civil penalties and injunctive relief to address
such non-compliance. Both GWA and the U.S. Department of Justice, Environmental and Natural
Resources Division, mutually agreed in the form of a Court Order to resolve the violation issues.
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(12)

Court Order, Continued

On June 5, 2003, a Court Order for Preliminary Relief was filed before the District Court of Guam.
The Stipulation requires implementation of short-term projects and initial planning measures by
GWA. GWA is required to submit a final financial plan in the Master Plan that generates sufficient
revenue to cover the cost of all compliance activities and deliverables required by the Court Order
for Preliminary Relief, as well as any other anticipated expenses, including any measures
necessary to ensure compliance with the CWA and the SDWA and costs related to the
infrastructure improvements identified in the Master Plan.

In 2006, the Court Order was amended which required GWA to perform approximately $220
million worth of capital improvement projects and perform other actions to bring GWA’s system
into compliance. However, GWA was unable to meet all deadlines set out in the amended Court
Order. The District Court ordered the parties to stipulate as to scope of remaining projects and
project completion dates; however, the parties were unable to reach an agreement on all items.
As a result, on November 10, 2011, the District Court issued an order setting new deadlines for
the unfinished projects and establishing new projects that were not part of the amended Court
Order. As of September 30, 2015, the financial impact of the order has not been fully known and
has been estimated to cost approximately $450 million to $500 million, including financing costs.

Primary Treatment Permits

On November 29, 2011, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) informed
GWA that its primary treatment permits for the Hagatna and Northern District Wastewater
Treatment Plants had been denied and that GWA would be required to upgrade the plants to
secondary treatment. The upgrades have been estimated to cost approximately $300 million.
GWA intends to negotiate with the USEPA on the timelines for upgrading the plants, which will
determine implementation schedule for secondary treatment.

Other Matters

(13)

On December 31, 1989, the Government of Guam issued general obligation Water System
Revenue Bonds, Series 1989, in the amount of $49,190,000. The bonds have been issued for
the purpose of expanding and improving the existing water system of the Government operated
by GWA. The bond obligation liability is recognized by the Government of Guam and is not
reflected as a liability of GWA.

Contributions Received

Contributions received by GWA during the years ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, are as
follows:

2015 2014
Grants from U.S. Government:
Received from the U.S. EPA $ 3,506,633 $ 3,130,105
Passed through from the Government of Guam 80,004 429,400
$ 3,586,637 $ 3,559,505

(14)

GUAM WATERWORKS AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Supplemental/COLA Annuities

(15)

As required by Public Law 26-49, as amended by Public Law 27-106, GWA must pay to the
Government of Guam Retirement Fund certain supplemental benefits for retirees. During the
years ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, GWA levied surcharges of 3.7% and 3.9%,
respectively, amounting to $2,798,030 and $2,712,221, respectively, in accordance with this
legislation. The supplemental benefits are derived from an annual appropriation by the Guam
Legislature and do not relate to covered Plan benefits.

System Development Charge

(16)

On January 29, 2010, PUC approved the implementation of a water and sewer SDC which
authorized GWA to charge water and wastewater SDC to applicable customers on and after
March 2, 2010. SDC revenues generated and collected are to be expended for costs associated
with the construction, expansion, upgrade, and repair of water and wastewater facilities for users
who are for the first time connecting property into the Guam water or wastewater system or for
builders if the density of the existing connection is increased. SDC revenues may also be used to
pay the principal sum and interest and other finance costs on bonds, notes or other obligations
issued by or on behalf of GWA to finance such capital improvements or facilities expansion or
renovations. During the years ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, SDC revenues were
$1,181,254 and $1,632,755, respectively.

Related Party Transactions

GWA receives electrical and administrative services from GPA, a component unit of the
Government of Guam also governed by the CCU. Electricity purchases from GPA for the years
ended September 30, 2015 and 2014 were $14,026,448 and $16,426,402, respectively, and
GWA was also charged $917,250 and $764,950, respectively, for administrative services
provided by GPA. Outstanding payables for power purchases, administrative expenses and cost
reimbursements owed by GWA to GPA were $933,386 and $2,987,022 as of September 30, 2015
and 2014, respectively.

For the years ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, GWA billed GPA a total of $1,426,618 and
$1,255,765, respectively, for water and sewer charges on the facilities transferred by the Navy to
GPA. The amount due from GPA as of September 30, 2015 and 2014 were $344,766 and
$1,544,169, respectively, which is included in receivables in the accompanying statements of net
position.

GWA receives waste disposal services from Guam Solid Waste Authority (GSWA). Waste
disposal fees for the years ended September 30, 2015 and 2014 were $1,343,767 and
$1,494,012, respectively. Outstanding payables for waste disposal fees owed by GWA to GSWA
were $135,098 and $390,720 as of September 2015 and 2014, respectively, and were included in
trade accounts payable in the accompanying statements of net position.
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